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SENATOR BYE: Now we are moving on to our -- the 
general public list. We will start with Dr. 
Linette Branham. I hope I'm saying that 
right. Doctor, welcome. 

LINETTE BRANHAM: Good afternoon Senator Bye and 
Representative Willis and members of the 
Committee. I'm Linette Branham. I'm the 
director of Policy and Professional Practice 
at the Connecticut Education Association, and 
I'd like to comment briefly on two bills, 
Senate Bill 382 and Senate Bill 384. 

_aenate Bill 382 is rather brief, and our 
assumption of that bill is that it aims to 
assure that early childhood educators have 
appropriate certification and preparation and 
that special educators also are -- work with, 
I should say, kindergarteners. 

The bill states that as of July 1st, if it's 
passed this year -- as of July 1st, 
certificates, elementary certificates, will be 
valid for grades one through six. There's an 
unintended consequence, we believe, to this in 
that that·would strip, basically, kindergarten 
from every currently valid elementary 
certificate, meaning that those teachers who 
currently teach kindergarten under that 
certification would not be able to do so come 
September. 

We ran into this same type of situation a 
number of years ago and it really created a 
lot of chaos. Part of the problem is that we 
don't have enough people coming into early 
childhood education itself as a field. So 
it's an unintended consequence that we just 
wanted to make you aware of. The overall goal 
of the bill, however, we do support . 
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Bill 384 aims to do two things, and that is, 
one -- the first one is that it would require 
a student teaching experience to begin in the 
first year that a teacher, a pre-service 
teacher, is in the teacher preparation program 
and continue throughout that teacher prep 
program, and we really strongly support that. 
Students now have a variety of field 
experiences before their student teaching 
experience, but they can vary from one 
university to another. 

It also states that students must be given 
information about shortage areas, both 
geographic and subject area in their first 
year of the preparation program. That is also 
very well-intentioned but I think it•s a 
little bit late. By the time that a student 
gets into a teacher preparation program, 
chances are that that student has done the 
majority of his or her course work in the 
subject area major that they have. So it•s 
really late for that student to pursue another 
subject area. 

There are a lot of ways in which this could, 
you know, be changed and -- and this could be 
worked out so that students get information a 
lot earlier, before they make the decision to 
come into the profession. Because of that, we 
have strong reservations about both of those 
bills, and we do ask that you withhold full 
support until some of these issues are 
resolved so that we don't have unintended 
consequences in the long run. 

Thank you very much. 

SENATOR BYE: Thank you very much for your 
testimony, and you make an excellent point 
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about the early childhood bill, Senate Bill 
382. And that seems like an -- a reasonable 
accommodation that people who have -­
currently have the certificate, the 
(inaudible) K to 6, maintain those 
certificates to teach K to six. I think 
that's what you're asking. Is that accurate? 

LINETTE BRANHAM: Yeah, that's true. But also the 
fact that we don't have enough students 
currently in our early childhood program, and 
it takes the universities a bit of time, you 
know, to ramp up and change any program. 

SENATOR BYE: Uh-huh. 

LINETTE BRANHAM: So if that -- even if that bill 
was to become effective July 1 and grandfather 
in all current holders, we could still run the 
risk of having too large of a gap for a period 
of time . 

We really need to encourage students, who 
really want to teach kindergarten and first 
grade, especially, or kindergarten and pre-K 
to go into early childhood education. But 
because we have overlap in our certificates, 
it's understandable that they go for the 
certificate that gives them the greatest 
latitude and, hence, the greatest opportunity 
to get a job. So we've got a real problem 
here. I don't know if that's something that 
you want to --

SENATOR BYE: Yeah. 

LINETTE BRANHAM: -- recommend to the commissioner's 
new Educator Preparation Advisory Council to 
take a look at, but that might be one avenue. 

SENATOR BYE: Okay. Well, thank you very much . 
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LINETTE BRANHAM: Thank you. 

SENATOR BYE: And 
intent and --

and I think that you get the 

LINETTE BRANHAM: Oh, absolutely. 

SENATOR BYE: it, basically, when they changed 
this a number of years ago they destroyed the 
early childhood ed program that are --

LINETTE BRANHAM: Absolutely. 

SENATOR BYE: state universities -- and they 
closed programs --

LINETTE BRANHAM: Absolutely. 

SENATOR BYE: so now you're right. It will take 
some time to adjust, so I appreciate your 
input . 

Senator Boucher, did you have questions? 

SENATOR BOUCHER: Yes. Thank you, Madam Chairman. 
And thank you for 

LINETTE BRANHAM: You're welcome. 

SENATOR BOUCHER: -- appearing before us and adding 
your perspective on this topic that has 
occupied some of us for a while in -- in 
trying to think about how we can better 
improve classroom teaching and outcomes, given 
so much attention and discussion this year on 
education reform. 

One of the things t:-hat I found in working with 
so many different towns, and many of them with 
outstanding school systems and others that are 
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LINETTE BRANHAM: Uh-huh. 

SENATOR BOUCHER: -- working to develop and become 
better, is the interesting feedback I get on 
the part of staff responsible for the hiring 
and -- and evaluation of -- of new teachers 
and superintendents as well as -- the -- the 
concern that I found was that there seems to 
be a lack of consistency between the various 
programs and -- and the students that -- that 
are ultimately become the teachers in their 
classroom. 

This -- although there were some that were 
highly regarded -- and took a look at some of 
those who were highly regarded and two of the 
things that seem to come out at you was that 
-- had very high hurdles for acceptance. In 
other words, their qualifications were quite 
high to get into their programs and also 
spending the kind of quality time actually 
doing the work of teaching. And so -- since, 
though, however, we contemplated looking at 
drawing up some language that might be heard 
such as today. I've since learned that the 
Department of Education, almost at the same 
time, seems to be coming to the same 
conclusion. And as you just mentioned, 
they've put together a committee, an Education 
Preparation Advisory Council --

LINETTE BRANHAM: Right. 

SENATOR BOUCHER: -- with -- combining both of the 
Department of Education and the Board of 
Regents as well, which is a great way to do 
it, and it appears that they are going to be 
looking at a lot of the issues that we're 
looking at in this bill with hopes of coming 

001047 



• 

• 

• 

56 
jr/gdm/gbr 

March 13, 2012 
HIGHER EDUCATION AND 1:00 P.M. 
EMPLOYMENT ADVANCEMENT COMMITTEE 

SUSAN PALISANO: Thank you. 

SENATOR BYE: Next is Maggie Adair from the 
Connecticut Early Childhood Alliance. 

MAGGIE ADAIR: Good afternoon, Senator Bye, 
Representative Willis, and members of the 
Higher Education and Employment Advancement 
Committee. I'm Maggie Adair. I'm the 
executive director at the Connecticut Early 
Childhood Alliance. 

The Alliance is a statewide advocacy and 
membership organization committed to improving 
the developmental outcomes of children, all 
children, birth to eight in areas of early 
learning, health, safety and economic 
security. 

I'm here today to testify in support of Senate 
Bill 382 AN ACT CONCERNING TEACHER 
CERTIFICATION. This bill changes the current 
endorsement to teach elementary education from 
grades -- from kindergarten through six to 
grades one through six. One outcome of this 
change would be the positive impact that it 
would have on the early childhood workforce 
and the gap that we, as a state, face to -­
face to place highly qualified teachers in our 
publicly funded early childhood programs. 

Several years ago, state regulations changed 
the elementary endorsement to include 
kindergarten. The change resulted in 
compromising the Integrated Early 
Childhood/Special Education Nursery through 
Grade Three Endorsement. I would actually 
suggest that this be changed to be a three to 
three title as -- as -- from the current, kind 
of, outdated, outmoded title . 
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Students who may have chosen the stronger and 
more comprehensive early childhood preparation 
instead were counseled and in -- subsequently 
opted to receive the K through six elementary 
education, as this would also allow them to 
teach K through three. This change in policy 
marginalized the early childhood degree 
programs. And today the amount of students 
graduating with a nursery through grade three 
endorsement are significantly reduced, as well 
as the existing programs are reduced. 

We now have too many teachers, as CA has said, 
who are -- have -- certified in elementary 
education and too few who are certified in 
early childhood education. Teachers of young 
children benefit from a strong knowledge base 
in child development and developmentally 
appropriate practice. And this content is 
best found in specialized early childhood 
preparation programs . 

Teachers graduating with this degree are 
prepared to teach young children who learn 
very differently than a -- a -- child in 
grades four through six. It is critical that 
we put teachers in classrooms with young 
children who understand fundamental concepts 
such as executive functioning and early 
language literacy, which will help to ensure 
that all children are ready for kindergarten 
and are reading at grade level by grade three. 

Preparing teachers K through six waters down 
this specialized knowledge base as the focus 
of the content becomes broader and more about 
curriculum and instruction. 

Finally, this bill strengthens the argument 
for pay parity between pre-K and kindergarten 
teachers. In Connecticut, the average pay for 
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a kindergarten teacher is about $60,000. The 
average wage for a pre-K teacher in a 
state-funded program is about $31,000. 

Pay for the early childhood workforce is the 
elephant in the room. Quality and 
compensation go hand-in-hand. If Connecticut 
is serious about closing the achievement gap, 
and we know that we need to start in the 
earliest years. We need to get serious about 
address -- addressing pay period' in the early 
childhood workforce. We need to do this for 
the sake of our children. 

Thank you very much. 

SENATOR BYE: Thank you -- thank you, Maggie. I 
know you were fortunate enough to be with me 
at the early childhood forum that the 
Connecticut Mirror put on last week. And I 
think every speaker took Lynn Kagan, who's a 
-- a national researcher, term of 
"schoolification" of early childhood education 
and the hazard of that for long-term outcomes 
for kids because, while you may be hammering 
in literacy, children are not having time to 
learn self-regulation and those attitudinal 
things and self-control that ultimately make 
them able to sit later when their brains are 
really primed for learning reading. 

Can you talk about that just briefly about why 
do we need this? Why -- why shouldn't we have 
someone who student teaches in fourth grade 
teaching preschool? 

MAGGIE ADAIR: I think it's very important that -­
what Lynn Kagan said -- she's a national early 
childhood expert, very widely recognized and 
respected is that there is a reason why we 
have a birth to eight system. What -- what --
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it's not arbitrary around third grade. 

Science, the brain research, psychologists, 
all show that once a child -- it -- at grade 
three -- at ?ge eight learns differently. 
Children wheh they're early -- they -- they 
learn in circles. That's why they want to be 
read books -- the same book again and again 
and again. A child who's in fourth grade says 
I read that book, I want to go to a new book. 
So that we need to understand that there is 
this is not an arbitrary thing around how 
children learn. 

So to expect a sixth grade teacher who's 
teaching a child who is -- thought is his 
who learns very differently than a child who's 
in pre-K, kindergarten, first grade, who's 
needs -- who's learning in a very, very 
different way, the teacher has to be very in 
tune with the developmentally appropriate 
practice when you're working with these 
children. And I think that, you know, the 
debate around play verses academics is 
somewhat raging in Connecticut until -- some 
-- around some recent news articles about the 
fact that, in some kindergarten classes, 
there's literally no play in place, and that 
this concept of an executive function is so 
important about how these children need to 
learn self-regulation on their own so that 
they are ready to learn when they're first in 
second grade and third grade. 

To expect young children, particularly boys, 
to be sitting hours on end and not engaging in 
play, they are not going to learn. It -- it 
was interesting, I read a letter to the editor 
this morning around this whole thing about the 
play verses academics and being ready is like 
-- it's akin to asking your one-in-a-half year 
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old pushing them to learn how to walk faster. 
That -- that child is going to walk when that 
child is ready to walk. 

SENATOR BYE: Yes. And"you probably need to expose 
them to some gross motor experience to help 
them get ready to walk. 

MAGGIE ADAIR: Yes. 

SENATOR BYE: But training them in walking is not 
going to make them a better walker --

MAGGIE ADAIR: Yes. 

SENATOR BYE: -- in the long run. Right? 

MAGGIE ADAIR: Right. 

SENATOR BYE: It's sort of, like, the analogy is 
that the mirror (inaudible) the hasty farmer. 
You know, they want -- they want everything to 
grow fast and they plant it quickly and they 
do all the things they are supposed to do 
really fast but without the fertile soil it's 
not going to bear any fruit, I think is the 
analogy used there. That you need to spend 
time building -- building the soil. 

MAGGIE ADAIR: See, I think CA -- CEA made some 
very good points around the grandfathering. 

SENATOR BYE: Agreed. 

MAGGIE ADAIR: The language doesn't have it and 
that I -- I assume that, of course, that 
grandfathering would take place. That would 
be incredibly -- a negative impact on the 
current teachers or the current teachers 
actually who are in the pipeline. And also, I 
do agree also that -- 2012 or 2013, there's 
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going to be -- need some time to ramp up the 
existing nursery through grade three, or we 
could call it the three to three degree 
program because that would take some time. 
But, it does exist so it's not that it 
disappeared, it's just that, as you said, that 
students were opted into the K through twelve 

SENATOR BYE: Yeah. 

MAGGIE ADAIR: -- K through six. 

SENATOR BYE: Yeah. And I appreciate that. And -­
and you keep talking about this idea of three 
to three. Is that part of some national 
movement or what -- what is this idea --

MAGGIE ADAIR: That is part of a 

SENATOR BYE: -- you -- you keep saying three to 
three . 

MAGGIE ADAIR: -- part of a national movement and 
it is -- it's focusing on -- that the need for 
alignment from pre-K to grade three, and the 
fact that -- not pushing down kindergarten 
academics but, you know, appropriate 
instruction at the pre-K level, and there's a 
continuum of how a child learns. 

There's actually a group here in Connecticut 
that went to Harvard two years ago, I believe, 
and they actually call themselves the three to 
three group, and they are working on these -­
this alignment, and -- and -- and particularly 
connecting preschool programs that are not in 
elementary schools -- in the public school 
systems who are in community-based programs, 
the need to have that alignment as that child 
is transitioning into kindergarten . 
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It's so important to have that -- the 
relationship going back and forth between 
those pre-K programs and the kindergarten 
programs. And it takes place in some 
communities and it's working wonderfully in 
some communities, where the K to -- the 
kindergarten teacher is going with the 
preschool classroom to visit, the preschool 
teachers is going to the kindergarten. If 
there's professional development, they open it 
up to the preschool classroom because they 
don't have the same resources. And that -­
that's needed. It -- it -- it's very, very 
important what's going on. 

SENATOR BYE: Thank you. And -- and my experience 
in early childhood certainly shows to me that 
there is a lot more pushing down going on than 
pushing up of curriculum. And -- and I met 
last week -- I asked the UConn Human 
Development and Family Studies to come down 
and the Neag School because I think this total 
disconnection between early childhood and 
elementary really is part of why we are losing 
kids and we are not closing the gap in a way 
that we would hope we could. 

And in a lot of colleges, particularly since 
we changed this regulation, the early 
childhood majors have just, sort of, 
disappeared. And so now you have more push 
down than ever because everyone's getting 
trained in K to six. It used to be -- I know 
when I taught at Saint Joseph's College, a 
real balance. You had some early childhood 
people and some one to six people, and the 
overlap was important. And now it seems like 
the groups have -- have gone into entirely 
different camps . 
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And so what you talked about rarely happens. 
It does happen that preschool teachers are 
told, oh, you should go see what second grade 
is like, but second grade teachers don't spend 
a lot of time in preschool. It just has to 
do, I think, with the weight -- the relative 
weight of the two groups. 

MAGGIE ADAIR: And -- and I think we just need to 
go to the brain research, which was not really 
here 20 or 25 years ago. 

SENATOR BYE: Right. 

MAGGIE ADAIR: I mean, it -- and it has grown 
exponentially in the last decade or so. The 
-- it's -- research is there, and it shows how 
children learn. And the -- in critical 
importance to starting at birth before they 
are entering pre-K, the zero to three years 
are so important but also how these children 
are going to thrive in a pre-K program . 

SENATOR BYE: Right. And I was just also -- one 
other thing I direct committee members to is 
the Harvard Center for the Developing Child, 
where -- where Jack Shonkoff is doing a lot of 
work to s~ow that if you don't take on the 
social and emotional development, you'll never 
get to the cognitive development. That starts 
with kids feeling secure and attached and not 
in chaos. So I thank you for your testimony. 
Other committee members? 

Representative Ackert. 

REP. ACKERT: Thank you, Madam Chair. And I'm just 
trying to -- I guess I understand the -- the 
crest of this and -- and where we're going 
with it. My daughters a K-six -- now in · 
certification practices, seventh and eighth 
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also. So -- but are we -- are our higher eds 
ready for -- if -- in this change, are they 
prepared for this? 

I guess that is where my concern is. I, you 
know, obviously, we made a change and it went 
back, and a lot of people maybe have changed 
their courses. And are they aligned to 
possibly be prepared as of July 1 change for 
this year? 

So do you think that it's not going to be, you 
know -- forgetting, you know -- you know, 
teachers and -- and would -- would it be a 
baccalaureate degree? Would it be an 
associates for an early childhood? 

If you could help me with that, that would be 
great. 

MAGGIE ADAIR: Yes. So let me clarify. So there 
are two certifications right now, as it 
stands, k through six and I think it's one -­
one -- 013. And then there is this nursery to 
grade three, which is 113. It exists. And it 
actually exists right now. It exists at 
Eastern Connecticut State University as an 
undergrad or a grad; Mitchell college as an 
undergrad; Saint Joseph's as an undergrad or 
grad; Southern, undergrad or grad; and 
University of Hartford. So, it's in place; 
it's just that they have been reduced. And 
then in other colleges, they actually closed 
them because of enrollment. 

So, yes, you would need a ramp up. And I 
think -- I agree with CEA that -- of it -­
this year we probably -- it's a little tight, 
so that we have to think ~bout -- you know, as 
all bills, they're a work in progress. And 
you can fix them and re-think about a 
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timeline. So it's not creating a brand new 
curriculum. 

REP. ACKERT: Thank you. 
concern and so it -­
and it's great. And 
testimony. 

And that was my -- my 
it's a work in progress 
thank you for your 

Thank you, Madam Chair. 

SENATOR BYE: That was very helpful. Thank you for 
that question, Representative Ackert. 

Other questions? 

Senator Boucher. 

SENATOR BOUCHER: Thank you, Madam Chairman. And 
thank you so much for your testimony, I think 
this afternoon's discussions have been 
incredibly important and very relevant, 
however the last two things -- comments you 
just made sort of highlighted, I believe the 
CA's concern when I asked them, you know: 
would you prefer that you sliced and diced the 
certification process to be more specialized 
and to more address that age group, and the 
response was: well you know, the vagaries of 
the market place could be very problematic for 
a teacher because if the demographics shift, 
you have so many fewer and all of a sudden the 
enrollment, as you said -- enrollment is 
reduced to such a point then they don't want 
to lose their practice teaching. They would 
want to have some flexibility and moving 
between the grade levels and it -- it sounds 
to me as if that -- if doing so, it almost 
would require a little refresher course maybe 
in that different -- the different needs of -­
of the actual student, that child, if they 
were to have to do that as well. Do you have 
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any thoughts on that? 

MAGGIE ADAIR: Yes, well -- so -- and at first I'm 
going to say I am by no -- no means an expert 
around certifications. Let's lay that out 
quickly. And I think it is complicated. 

My first point is why we think this still is 
important because it's not about the system, 
it's not about the teachers, it's not about 
the superintendent, this is about the child. 
And we need the best outcomes for children we 
can, and we know about teaching 
developmentally appropriate practice if we are 
going to close this achievement gap. 

Now, on the practical side, I understand these 
concerns. I think we need to think in terms 
of -- that pre-K through three is a spread, of 
some sort, for teachers to choose. I was 
intrigued by what CA said about some kind of 
cross endorsement. Maybe something could be 
-- we could work in alignment with that. 

I know that the change occurred a few years 
ago because superintendents wanted that 
ability to be able to move teachers around. 
It wasn't just about teachers having the 
choice in the marketplace, which I understand, 
that is an issue, but also wanting to move 
students around. And my first reaction was, 
yeah, but do we really want a sixth grade 
teacher going into a kindergarten program, and 
we don't. 

On the other hand, if you're look -- I fear 
I'm just going to open up Pandora's Box -­
when you're thinking about tiny, tiny 
communities and we have one superintendent and 
one principal, they don't have that latitude 
to move around as much. But there's a whole 
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other argument that there should be 
collaborations between three, four, five 
communities so that you could actually shift 
teachers from community to community. I mean, 
that's a whole other picture that really needs 
to be addressed long term, because it's rather 
silly to think that we have such tiny, tiny 
communities then -- and then they don't have 
that latitude to be creative and innovative 
and -- but that's another -- a conversation 
for another day. 

So I think this is complicated, I think it 
needs some discussion. I think it needs some 
thinking through as far as maybe a cross 
endorsement. I still am going to go back to 
the child though, and this model works best 
for young children. And I think that is what 
we need to really ground our policy in, what 
is going to work best for the child? 

SENATOR BYE: Thank you. Other questions? 

Thank you for your testimony today, Maggie, 
and for -- I know it's not your specialty area 
but I know it's been coming up a lot with the 
early childhood alliance --

MAGGIE ADAIR: Well, I've been --

SENATOR BYE: -- as it concerns --

MAGGIE ADAIR: -- listening to many experts and 
talking with many, many people, so I'm 
actually bringing the views not of -- of just 
myself but many people in the alliance who 
have expertise and they just didn't have time 
to get up here today. 

SENATOR BYE: Okay. Super . 
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MAGGIE ADAIR: Thank you. 

SENATOR BYE: Next is Dr. Paige Bray from the Early 
Childhood Higher Ed Alliance -- oh, good. Be 
able to answer some of our questions, and 
thank you so much for coming up here and 
testifying today. 

PAIGE BRAY: Good afternoon, Chairman Bye and Willis 
and committee. I have many thoughts so -­
especially as the conversation has expanded, 
and I thank Maggie for going first. I think 
she just did wonderful heavy lifting. 

But I wanted to tell you that I am a professor 
of early childhood at University of Hartford. 
I have had the honor of continuing a long 
legacy of early childhood preparation there. 
We are a program that has been -- was 
marginalized, in part, by the decisions that 
have been made in the past but have -- stand 
strong and continued to be committed to early 
childhood. 

I'm also the cochair for the early childhood 
higher education committee, which is a group 
of all of those faculty members who have 
remained standing in both associate degree 
programs and four year programs, so I speak 
with some perspective on that group as well. 

I also come to you as a person who has been 
dedicated to family and children my entire 
career, which included time in the classroom 
in very diverse settings, urban, non-urban 
settings, and I want to speak specifically to 
the Bill 382. 

Kindergarten is children -- are -- is the 
child's first experience or at least a bridge 
experience into what we understand to be 
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formal schooling. It's a very critical time. 
Anyone who has a kindergarten age child close 
to them understands what -- how big that 
transition is, both for the child and for the 
parent. 

What early childhood people do, people 
prepared in the early childhood certification, 
is understand how to work with children and 
their families, how to work with the parents 
who are going to continue to support children 
and set those foundations for children across 
their career as students and out into the 
workforce. 

As early childhood educators, we pay attention 
to the whole person, which means we focus on 
literacy and the language development 
across -- across the early childhood span for 
-- through age eight, and what that looks 
what the can mean for the third grade literacy 
test. But we also focus on executive 
function. We also focus on the social, 
emotional learning and we understand the 
connections between home and school. That's 
part of the content that early childhood 
educators are prepared to -- to address. 

In my experience with the workforce, I want to 
just say that most people know, most typically 
women, but most young adults know that they 
are interested in early childhood, especially 
in these current times. They're very 
concerned about their employment 
opportunities. So part of what -- bringing 
the kindergarten into early childhood 
certification only will do for us is let the 
people who know that's the age they are 
committed to really focus on it and not feel 
like they have to also move over to that 
elementary content for the sake of employment 
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opportunity. So I think it -- this is a way 
we can honor the choices of the people who 
really want to work with young children. 

In my experience with associate programs 
moving to bachelors, and people who have been 
working in private pre-K, seeking their 
certification at the graduate level, these are 
people who have field-tested, if you will, 
their early childhood experience, and so they 
are people who, I think, have a clear 
commitment to that work and what it means to 
work with those children and their families. 

Last but not least, I just want to say I think 
we have the opportunity here to focus on early 
childhood practice in schools. That means our 
young children will move out into be 
contributing adults in ways of -- about 
critical thinking and collaboration, and all 
those things that once, about ten years ago, 
we had a poster that said everything I needed 
to learn I learned in kindergarten. We could 
get back to a few of those principals. So 
thank you very much for hearing my testimony 
today. 

SENATOR BYE: Thank you for coming before us. Now, 
can you t don't know how long you have been 
at U-Hart, but could you give us some 
historical perspective about what happened? 
Because, you know, I was working at Saint 
Joseph College when this changed --

PAIGE BRAY: Yeah. 

SENATOR BYE: -- and it seemed all of a sudden, and 
it changed our program entirely over the 
course of a month. 

PAIGE BRAY: Uh-huh . 
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SENATOR BYE: -- so I don't -- but I -- I wasn't 
involved in public policy around it at that 
time and I didn't know if you were and if you 

PAIGE BRAY: 
time. 
point. 

SENATOR BYE: 

Right. It was a little bit before my 
I was actually in Massachusetts at that 

Okay. 

PAIGE BRAY: I've been at the University of 
Hartford for four years. We -- I replaced 
Regina Miller, who's here, who was at the 
university for 30 -- 2 or 3 years, I believe, 
before that. I can just speak to practically 
what I have seen, which is that, in the face 
of kindergarten moving to also be part of the 
elementary, students are concerned that they 
won't be as marketable. That the principal 
will defer and hire the person who had -- they 
can put in more grades versus hire the person 
who has the content knowledge related to the 
young child. 

And I think that the importance there is that, 
I feel, having been a marginalized program, I 
send my students out to be marginalized 
somewhat as professionals, because they do 
advocate for children and they do talk about 
working with families, and that's part of the 
priority. And so this, I think, would create 
a school-based strength for that sort of 
practice. 

But I really hear -- and this is related to my 
research -- I really hear parents struggling 
with what the kindergarten experience is for 
their children in kindergarten and -- and how 
do they make sense of, this is where I know my 
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child is at, this is where I want my child to 
be, but this thing that is being asked of 
them, whether it's sitting still six hours, 
whether it's very fine motor paper-based work 
and very narrow educational experience, it's 
not sitting well for them. 

SENATOR BYE: Okay. That's helpful and just sort 
of a follow up on that question. Do you -­
you heard Maggie say --

PAIGE BRAY: Uh-huh. 

SENATOR BYE: if we're talking about the 
interest of the child and the long-term 
interest of the child --

PAIGE BRAY: Uh-huh. 

SENATOR BYE: -- what's the difference between this 
preschool to grade three, and then one to 
grade six, and the K to grade six 
certification? How do you see it advantaging 
our children? 

PAIGE BRAY: Our children? Oh, no -- well -- I can 
speak to that -- that -- the advantage -- and 
this what I was alluding to in terms of some 
parent related research I've been engaged 
in -- it would enable kindergarten to meet the 
needs of the child and the family as that 
first experience or as that bridge experience, 
as people come -- as children come out of 
pre-K into the big -- into the more typical 
school, and that I think this would enable the 
people who are best positioned, by content and 
by field experience, to meet those needs. 

One of the things that came up was an issue of 
a cross endorsement. And while I would like 
to see cross endorsements be an opportunity 
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for teachers to expand their professional 
ground, the early childhood people are the 
people who are having experiences with that 
age child from -- at the University of 
Hartford, from their first year as 
undergraduates, or who are coming from that 
field and -- and fine-tuning their skills. 

So I think that idea of people who are -- not 
only have set course work about the work but 
are actually in the field and done the work, 
it -- and had those apprentice like 
experiences, is really a powerful experience 
for the children then to have that person in 
front of them. 

SENATOR BYE: Okay. Do you have any -- this is a 
little off subject, but since we have you 
here, do you have any ideas about how this 
committee -- I've begun conversations with 
higher ed institutions 

PAIGE BRAY: Uh-huh. 

SENATOR BYE: -- how this committee could work to 
breakdown the barriers that exist between 
early childhood programs and elementary 
programs, so that the practice will reflect a 
three-year old to third grade continuum that 
gets that birth to age eight, while the, you 
know, brain and development --

PAIGE BRAY: Uh-huh. 

SENATOR BYE: -- is proceeding 

PAIGE BRAY: Uh-huh. 

SENATOR BYE: -- in a way that's different than 
later elementary? 
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P~IGE BRAY: I think, from an academic perspective, 
we actually don't have a lot of disagreement. 
I think it becomes a practical expression of 
our accreditation and programs, and those are 
the silos that get created. So if we speak 
about brain research or we speak about 
academic topics, we have a lot of common 
ground. Even around understanding of -- of 
pedagogy and what that might look like, let's 
say, for the early literacy learner as then 
they emerge to later in the grade. 

So I think the focus on the current research 
that, in many ways, supports previous research 
around three to three, which Maggie addres~ed, 
and how that then quality experiences at that 
age with people who know what to do with that 
age supports the learning for the -- the 
teachers who are then going out to work in -­
at in elementary. 

So I think if we can move a little -- just 
create little spaces between the silos and 
understand all of us doing our best work means 
all of us will be able to produce stronger 
candidates, both in teacher education and then 
high-quality teachers obviously affecting the 
students -- the children themselves. 

I did also want to say something about the 
workforce, if I may, which is just that I 
there were a number of early childhood 
programs that were cut. But there are a 
number that still exist at the undergrad and 
grad level, and with strong associate programs 
feeding bachelor level programs as well. 

So, while clearly, I had assumed there would 
be some language about grandfathering current 
people in positions, currently gotten 
positions or the pipeline, there is definitely 

001078' 



• 

• 

• 

75 
jr/gdm/gbr HIGHER EDUCATION AND 

March 13, 2012 
1:00 P.M. 

EMPLOYMENT ADVANCEMENT COMMITTEE 

capacity that can be expanded to meet this 
need. It's not as though that everyone 
disappeared. 

SENATOR BYE: Okay. Well -- well that's very 
helpful. Thank you. 

PAIGE BRAY: Uh-huh. 

SENATOR BYE: Other questions? 

Thank you very much. 

PAIGE BRAY: Sure. Thank you. 

SENATOR BYE: -- for your testimony today. 

That concludes our list of people signed up. 
Is there anyone else who would like to 
testify? Would anybody else like to testify 
today? 

And if not, if nobody else would like to 
testify, then I call this hearing closed. 
Thank you . 
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Submitted by Maggie Adair, Executive Director 
Connecticut Early Childhood Alliance 

Tuesday, March 13, 2012 

Good afternoon, Senator Bye, Representative Willis, and members of the Higher Education and 
Employment Advancement Commtttee. I am Maggie Adair, Executive Director of the Connecticut Early 
Childhood Alliance (Alliance). The Alliance is a statewide advocacy and membership organization 
committed to improving outcomes for all children, birth to age eight, in the areas of early learning, health, 
safety, and economic security. 

I am here today to testify in support of S.B. 382- An Act Concernmg Teacher Certification. This bill 
changes the current endorsement to teach elementary education grades from Kindergarten through 6 to 
Grades 1 through 6. One outcome of this change would be the resulting positive impact that it would 
have on the early childhood workforce and the gap we, as a state, face to place highly qualified teachers 
in our publicly funded early childhood classroom. 

Several years ago, state regulations changed the elementary endorsement to include kindergarten. This 
change resulted in compromising the Integrated Early Childhood /Special Education Nursery through 
Grade 3 Endorsement (113). Students, who may have chosen the stronger and more comprehensive early 
childhood preparation, instead were counseled to, and subsequently opted to, receive the K-6 elementary 
degree (013), as this also allows them to teach grades K-3. This change in policy marginalized the early 
childhood degree programs, and today the amount of students graduating with the Nursery through Grade 
3 endorsement are significantly reduced, as well as the existence of these program . We now have too 
many teachers certified in elementary education and too few certtfied in early childhood education. 

Teachers of young children benefit from a strong knowledge base in child development and 
developmentally appropriate practice, and this content is best found in specialized early childhood 
preparation programs. Teachers graduating with this degree are prepared to teach young children, who 
learn very differently than a child in grades 4-6. It is critical that we put teachers in classrooms with 
young children who understand fundamental concepts like executive functioning and early language 
literacy, which will help to ensure that a child is ready to enter kindergarten, and able to read at grade 
level by grade 3. Preparing teachers K through 6, waters down this specialized knowledge base, as the 
focus of the content becomes broader and more about curriculum and instruction. 

Finally, this bill strengthens the argument for pay parity between pre-k teachers and kindergarten 
teachers. In Connecticut, the average wage of a kindergarten teacher is about $60,000; the average wage 
for a pre-k teacher in a state-funded program is $31,000. Pay for the early childhood workforce is the 
elephant in the room. Quality and compensation go hand m hand. If Connecticut is serious about closing 
the achievement gap, and we know that we need to start in the earliest years, we need to get serious about 
address pay parity in the early childhood workforce. We need to for the sake of our children. 

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to testify. 

Connecticut Early Childhood Alliance, 110 Bartholomew Avenue, Su1te 4030, Hartford, CT 06106 
860 819 3647, www earlychildhoodall1ance com 
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On Senate Bill 382, An Act Concerning Teacher Certification 
& 

On Senate Bill 384, An Act Concerning Teacher Preparat1on 

March 13, 2012 

Good afternoon Senator Bye and Representative Willis, and members of 
the Committee. 

My name is Linette Branham, I'm the Director of Policy and Professional 

Practice for the Connecticut Education Association, and I'd like to 

comment on Senate Bill 382 regarding elementary certification for 

teachers and Senate Bill 384 regarding teacher preparation. 

Without knowing the h1story and rationale for the proposed bill, it's 

difficult to grasp exactly what the goal of the bill is. We know that it 

would do two things: (1) eliminate kindergarten from the current 

elementary certificate, and (2) include kindergarten as a grade in the 

comprehensive special education certificate. My assumption is that the 

proposal's focus is on assuring that kindergarten teachers are better 

prepared to teach spec1al education students. If that assumption is 

correct, then in order to teach kindergarten under this bill, a teacher 

would have to hold an early childhood certificate, which is based on a 

preparat1on program that prepares the teacher to teach in either a 

regular or special education classroom at the primary level. 
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That, in itself, is a laudable goal ...... if special education needs of students 

are identified and addressed in the classroom at an e~rlier age, by 

teachers who are well prepared to do so, students benefit greatly. 

However, the bill has a major impact that may well not have been 

anticipated by those drafting the language. 

The bill states that, beginning this July 1, ill! elementary endorsements 

will be valid for teaching grades one through six. If passed, this 

legislation would, essentially, eliminate the validity of teachrng 

kindergarten that is now part of the elementary certificate. It would 

prevent the thousands of teachers who currently hold a K-6 certificate 

from being eligible to teach kindergarten in the fall of 2012. Connecticut 

had this problem occur previously, when kindergarten was removed from 

the elementary certificate and superintendents had to search for 

teachers who held the early childhood certificate to fill those positions. 

The result was a year of anxiety until kindergarten was restored to the 

certificate through the legislative process. While this is probably not the 

intention of Senate Bill 382, this could easily happen. 

Another potential problem lies in the area of teacher preparation. 

Eliminating kindergarten from the elementary certificate doesn't give 

higher education institutions the time they need to either design and 

seek approval for a program to certify early childhood educators, or 

~xpand their current programs to handle what may be the increased 

number of students who would apply to the programs so they could earn 

the early childhood certificate. Agarn, Connecticut could be left with a 
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period of at least a few years when we don't have enough qualified 

teachers to teach in one of the most important grade levels. 

There are two sect1ons of Senate Bill 384 CEA supports and urges you to 

pursue. The first is that students be required to have student teaching 

experiences beginning in their first year of the teacher preparation 

program. Students are currently required by most, if not all university 

programs, to have field experiences prior to student teachmg, but the 

natu"re of these can vary from one university's preparation program to 

another. We encourage a requ1rement for universities to have a more 

common approach to what constitutes either 'field experiences' or 'early 

student teaching so there is more consistency in what students in 

different programs receive. 

CEA also supports the practice of teacher preparation programs providing 

information about subject and geographic teaching shortage areas to 

students. However, by the time students are in the preparation program, 

most of them have already completed the subject area course 

requirements for their degree, and the ~ubject may not be one of those 

that is a subject area shortage. Where teachers are needed -as it 

pertains to both subject area and geographic area- needs to reach the 

hands of our students while they are in high school, and then continue to 

be reinforced when they first enter college. While we're not looking to 

create more requirements for high school guidance counselors to fill, we 

would encourage you to create more incentives that would move 

universities and school districts to work even more closely together to 

inform students ofthe need for teachers. 

With this in mind, we encourage you to withhold support for both_S~~ 

_t;>JlUlU.and~ntil other poss1ble ways to achieve the goals ofthese 



brlls are explored. Thank you for the opportunity to share our 

perspective with you. 
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